
 

Agenda - External Affairs and Additional Legislation 

Committee 
Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 2 - Senedd 

Meeting date: 20 November 2017 

Meeting time: 13.30

For further information contact: 

Alun Davidson 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddEAAL@assembly.wales
------ 

Private Pre-meeting (13.15-13.30)  

 

1 Introductions, Apologies, Substitutions and Declarations of 

Interest 

(13.30)   

2 Paper(s) to note 

(13.30)   

2.1 Paper to Note 1 - Letter from Llywydd to David Davis MP regarding the EU 

(Withdrawal) Bill 

 (Pages 1 - 2)  

2.2 Paper to Note 2 - Letter from UK JCW to David Davies MP regarding the EU 

(Withdrawal) Bill 

 (Pages 3 - 6)  

3 Resilience and preparedness: the Welsh Government’s 

administrative and financial response to Brexit - evidence session 

(13.30-14.30) (Pages 7 - 34)  

Mark Drakeford, Cabinet Secretary for Finance 

Shan Morgan, Permanent Secretary 

Break  

 

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



4 The European Union (Withdrawal) Bill and its implications for 

Wales - evidence session 

(14:35-15.00)   

Mark Drakeford, Cabinet Secretary for Finance 

Shan Morgan, Permanent Secretary 

5 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the 

public from the meeting for the remainder of the meeting 

(15.00)   

6 Resilience and preparedness: the Welsh Government’s 

administrative and financial response to Brexit - consideration of 

evidence 

(15.00-15.15)   

7 Motion to agree changes to sub-committee membership under 

Standing Order 17.17 

 (Page 35)  

8 Monitoring the EU Negotiations 

(15.15-15.45) (Pages 36 - 64)  



 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English 

 

 

 

 

 

The Rt Hon David Davis MP 

Secretary of State for Exiting the European Union 

Department for Exiting the European Union 

9 Downing Street 

LONDON 

SW1A 2AS 

 

 

Your ref: 

Our ref: EJ/RT 

 

 

24 October 2017 

 

 

Dear Secretary of State 

EU (Withdrawal) Bill 

The EU Withdrawal Bill will have a significant impact on Wales’ devolution settlement.  

I am pleased that you have acknowledged this and the need to seek the consent of 

the National Assembly for Wales for the Bill. 

As well as discussing aspects of the Bill with the Welsh Government, I would like to 

stress the need for UK Government to engage directly with the National Assembly.  

Given the Assembly’s role in scrutinising the implications of the Bill before 

considering whether to pass a legislative consent motion, it is in the UK Government’s 

interests to foster open and positive engagement with the Assembly’s committees, in 

particular. 

I was pleased that your Parliamentary Under-Secretary of State was able to attend the 

recent meeting of the UK Interparliamentary Forum on Brexit.  You will have noted the 

statement from that forum that: 

“…it is essential that DExEU Ministers are available to give evidence to all 

parliamentary committees with a role in scrutinising the Brexit process and the 

European Union (Withdrawal) Bill.” 

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2.1



 

 

At the recent Joint Ministerial Committee (European Negotiations) you agreed a 

commitment that common policy frameworks “will respect the devolution settlements 

and the democratic accountability of the devolved legislatures.”  The recognition 

given to the role of devolved parliaments is a step in the right direction. 

Accordingly, I expect full engagement with the Assembly’s committees from all 

relevant UK Government departments, which should respect and respond to 

representations made to them in areas within the Assembly’s competence. 

You will have seen the National Assembly’s cross-party External Affairs Committee 

Report published in June 2017 into The Great Repeal Bill White Paper: Implications for 

Wales. 

You will also be aware that the same Committee, building on this report, has 

published a series of proposed amendments to the Bill.  These are based on written 

and oral evidence received from a wide range of stakeholders and have benefitted 

from the input of constitutional and legal experts from across the United Kingdom. 

Given the cross party nature of the Committee’s deliberations and the unanimous 

support for its recommendations, I have no hesitation in adding my support to the 

Committee’s proposals.  

I hope that by the time the Bill proceeds to the Lords, the Government will have taken 

the opportunity to address the important points relating to the devolution settlement 

that have been raised by the Committee. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Elin Jones AM 

Llywydd 

 

cc   Alun Cairns MP, Secretary of State for Wales 

      Damian Green MP, First Secretary of State 

      Carwyn Jones AM, First Minister of Wales 

      David Rees AM, Chair, External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee 

      Huw Irranca-Davies AM, Chair, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 

Pack Page 2



 
 
 
The Rt Hon David Davis MP      WEN Wales  
Secretary of State for Exiting the European Union    Anchor Court North  
9 Downing Street       Keen Road 
London SW1A 2AG       Cardiff  
         CF24 5JW  
 
         24th October 2017 
Dear Minister,  
 
Re: Gender-blind negotiations surrounding the United Kingdom’s withdrawal from the 
European Union. 
 
We write in our capacity as members of the United Kingdom (UK) Joint Committee on Women, 
which is the UK’s national co-ordination to the European Women’s Lobby and as organisations 
engaged with advancing women’s equality and rights. We write to identify our concerns that 
women and gender as a topic of concern are absent from the Brexit negotiations.  
 
As you will know, equality policies are among the most developed areas of social policy in 
Europe, and equality is foundational to the European Union. Equal pay for equal work was one 
of the founding principles in 1957 and it was, and continues to be, embedded in EU Treaties 
and Directives. Over the last 50 years, EU laws have been underpinned by the principles of 
equality and non-discrimination, which have promoted and protected women’s rights in several 
areas, including the rights of part-time workers, the rights of pregnant women, and protections 
for women and girls who experience violence.  
 
As the UK moves forward with its withdrawal from the EU, we grow increasingly concerned 
about the absence of women’s voices and what that means for the erosion of women’s rights in 
the UK. While we were encouraged to learn of gender parity in the Department for Exiting the 
EU, we are concerned that the commitment to gender balance is not extended to the UK 
negotiating team. The UK negotiating team biographies, as published by your Department, 
include only one woman among its nine members. While women represent 51 percent of the 
population and 32 percent of the UK Parliament, women form only 11 percent of the UK’s 
negotiating team.  
 
In June 2017, Catherine West MP raised a question about the gender composition of the 
negotiating team. Steve Baker MP responded and noted that the first round of negotiations, 
held on 19 June 2017, included 12 members, two of whom were women. Mr. Baker further 
wrote that the Department for Exiting the European Union was “drawing together expertise 
from a wide range of departments where there is specific relevant knowledge”. Given the over-

Pack Page 3

Agenda Item 2.2



representation of men on negotiating teams, it would be helpful if your department could set 
out its plans to ensure that women’s lived experience forms part of negotiations. The UK 
Government has demonstrated its commitment to delivering ‘a deal that works in the best 
interests of all citizens’, a commitment which resonates well with us. It is difficult to 
understand, however, how this can be achieved when the voices of half of the UK’s population 
are not represented at the negotiating table.  
 
We urge your department to draw on the expertise of statutory equality bodies and civil 
society. It is vital that the two UK equality bodies, the Equality and Human Rights Commission 
and Equality Commission Northern Ireland, are substantively engaged as the negotiations 
proceed. Women’s organisations in all of four nations are keen to work with the UK 
Government to provide informed support to ensure women’s rights are protected. In the 
absence of a gender balanced negotiating team, and without statutory or third sector equalities 
experts involved in the work of the Department for Exiting the EU, we remain unconvinced that 
the rights of women will be adequately protected following the UK withdrawal from the EU. It is 
our concern that the current structures for exiting the EU will leave women both 
simultaneously exposed and invisible. 
 
Our concerns for women’s equality are particularly relevant in Northern Ireland, where there is 
currently no Executive and women have no channels through which to engage with your 
Department.  Women in Northern Ireland are likely to be disproportionately affected including 
in respect of life, work, trade and conflict resolution and around the border across the island of 
Ireland. 
 
In February 2017, the Women and Equalities Committee published its report ‘Ensuring strong 
equalities legislation after the EU exit’. Among its findings, the Committee noted that ‘ensuring 
that equality protections are maintained is not simply a matter of transposing existing EU law’. 
Civil society organisations across the UK have supported these findings and have made 
representations urging the Government to be cognisant of them in planning and negotiating 
the exiting arrangements. Despite the Committee’s findings, as well as support for the findings 
by civil society organisations, the European Union (Withdrawal) Bill proposes to end the 
supremacy of EU law and to convert EU law into UK domestic law.  
 
For 50 years, the EU has promoted gender equality and non-discrimination in policy and 
practice, and has consistently reaffirmed a commitment to promote and respect women’s 
rights. The absence of the EU legal framework, coupled by an unclear direction of the UK on its 
review of domestic legislation post-Brexit, puts the rights of women and girls in the UK in a 
precarious position. As it stands, the European Union (Withdrawal) Bill will do exactly what 
equality experts have warned would be detrimental to women’s equality and rights in the UK. 
To protect and promote women’s rights, we strongly urge the UK Government to build a 
gender-balanced negotiating team, reflective of the UK’s population. We call on you to commit 
to women’s equality and women’s rights as priorities for the UK-EU negotiating agenda and for 
the future post-Brexit UK.    
 

Pack Page 4



We look forward to your response.  
 
Yours sincerely, 
 

Carwen Howells 
 
Carwen Howells, Chair, UK Joint Committee on Women 
 
Barbara Cleary, Vice Chair, National Association of Women’s Organisations 
Catherine Fookes, Director, Women’s Equality Network Wales 
Emma Johnston, Board Member / European Representative, Northern Ireland Women’s 
European Platform - NIWEP 
Emma Ritch, Executive Director, Engender 
Jeanette Thornton, President, BPW Northern Ireland 
Lynn Carvill, Chief Executive Officer, WOMEN’STEC 
Anne McVicker, Director, Women’s Resource & Development Agency – WRDA 
Jan Melia, Chief Executive Officer,Women's Aid Federation Northern Ireland 
Sandy Brindley, Chief Executive, Rape Crisis Scotland 
Bill Scott, Director of Policy, Inclusion Scotland 
Tressa Burke, Chief Executive, Glasgow Disability Alliance 
Talat Yaqoob, Chair, Women 50:50 
Anna Ritchie Allan, Executive Director, Close the Gap 
Ian Welsh OBE, Chief Executive, Health and Social Care Alliance Scotland (the ALLIANCE)  
Marsha Scott, Chief Executive, Scottish Women’s Aid  
Evelyn Fraser, Development Manager, Scottish Women’s Convention  
Fergus McMillan, Chief Executive, LGBT Youth Scotland  
Tim Hopkins, Director, Equality Network 
Katy Mathieson, Co-ordinator, Scottish Women's Rights Centre 
Jackie Jones, Chair, Wales Assembly of Women  
Lesley Abdela MBE, Senior Partner, Shevolution  
Ahlam Akram, Director, BASIRA  
Tanya Barron, CEO, Plan International UK  
Dr Juliet Colman, Director, SecurityWomen  
Britt Gustawsson, Risk Manager, Zonta Club London II 
Annette Lawson, Chair, The Judith Trust/NAWO Ambassador 
Eleanor Lisney, Co Director, Sisters of Frida 
Lynda Dearlove, Chief Executive Officer, Women @ the Well 
Eleri Butler, CEO, Welsh Women’s Aid 
 
c.c.:  
 
The Rt Hon Justine Greening MP, Secretary of State for Education, UK Government  
The R t Hon James Brokenshire MP, Secretary of State for Northern Ireland, UK Government 
The Rt Hon David Mundell MP, Secretary of State for Scotland, UK Government  

Pack Page 5



The Rt Hon Alun Cairns MP, Secretary of State for Wales, UK Government  
Michael Russell MSP, Minister for UK Negotiations on Scotland’s Place in Europe, Scottish Government 
Christina McKelvie MSP, Convener, Equality and Human Rights Committee, Scottish Parliament  
Joan McAlpine MSP, Convener, Culture, Tourism, Europe and External Relations Committee, Scottish 
Parliament  
Carl Sargeant AM, Cabinet Secretary for Communities and Children, Welsh Government 
John Griffiths AM, Chair, Equality, Local Government and Communities Committee, Welsh Assembly 
David Rees AM, Chair, External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee, Welsh Assembly  
The Rt Hon Maria Miller MP, Chair, Women and Equalities Committee, UK Parliament 

 
 

 

Pack Page 6



1 
 

External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee: Written Evidence 

submitted by the Cabinet Secretary for Finance  

Introduction 

1. The External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee has invited me to 

give oral evidence to the Committee on 20 November as part of its inquiry - 

Resilience and preparedness: the Welsh Government’s administrative and 

financial response to Brexit. This written evidence paper has been structured 

to reflect the terms of reference for the inquiry, which are to examine: 

 

 the Welsh Government’s internal administrative and financial response 

to Brexit; and 

 how the Welsh Government is supporting public services, higher 

education, third sector and economic sectors to prepare for exiting the 

European Union. 

 

2. This paper demonstrates how the Welsh Government mobilised following the 

result of the referendum, to build capability across government to respond to 

the challenges and explore opportunities presented by European Union (EU) 

withdrawal. This has ensured that we have engaged extensively with 

stakeholders right from the start to understand their concerns and priorities, 

and to be active in setting out coherent policy positions to influence the UK 

Government’s approach to exit negotiations.  

The Welsh Government’s internal administrative and financial response to 

Brexit 

Strategic response 

3. The Cabinet Sub-Committee on European Transition was established to 

provide strategic direction to, and ensure the coherent development and 

implementation of, the Welsh Government’s strategy on European Transition, 

to secure the best outcome for the people of Wales. It is supported by the 

European Transition Officials Group comprised of senior officials. The Group 

draws together legal, economic and constitutional experts, as well as specific 

policy area leads, and supports joint working across Government. Sub-groups 

have also been established as needed, for example on the development of 

UK frameworks, and to focus on economic issues. A sub-group has also been 

established to bring together officials with legislation experience from across 

the organisation and provides coordination on the Welsh Government’s 

approach to Brexit-related legislation. In addition, a specific Liaison 

Committee with Plaid Cymru was set up to focus on Brexit-related issues, and 

the European Advisory Group was also established, comprising of business 

Pack Page 7

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

leaders, politicians, trade unions and others with European expertise to advise 

the Welsh Government on the implications for Wales of EU withdrawal.    

 

4. This joined up and collaborative approach has enabled the Welsh 

Government to be on the front foot in responding to the decision to leave the 

EU. This has allowed us to contribute constructively to the debate in order to 

influence UK Government positions, and to provide robust proposals for the 

future based on strong evidence. Examples include our White Paper 

“Securing Wales’ Future” published jointly with Plaid Cymru in January, and 

our follow up policy documents “Brexit and Devolution” and “Brexit and Fair 

Movement of People”. Further papers are in development. 

Staffing 

5. Following the referendum immediate action was taken by the Welsh 

Government, including prioritising staff resources to establish a dedicated 

European Transition Team, located centrally in the Office of the First Minister 

and Cabinet Office, to lead on the development of strategic policy and to 

coordinate Welsh Government work on our withdrawal from the EU. The team 

liaises with other devolved administrations and Whitehall departments, in 

particular the Cabinet Office and the Department for Exiting the EU, and co-

ordinates other Welsh Government departments’ engagement with their 

Whitehall counterparts. The team also leads on governance arrangements in 

relation to Brexit, and works across Welsh Government to consider and 

examine the potential implications of EU withdrawal.       

 

6. The team has grown since its establishment, and continues to expand in line 

with the development of work on European transition. The number of posts 

within the team has increased from an equivalent of three Wales-based posts 

working on EU policy at the time of the referendum to 19 posts currently 

working on EU Transition policy and legislation (and will grow by several more 

posts in the coming weeks), with a Director for European Transition having 

been appointed, along with two Deputy Directors.    

 

7. The European Transition Team has worked closely on Brexit-related matters 

with the Welsh Government team based in the Brussels Office which currently 

has six posts working on policy related issues. Staff in Brussels have 

continued with their work on ongoing EU business, alongside supporting work 

related to Brexit, for example providing intelligence and analysis on the 

negotiations and wider EU policy developments that relate to UK withdrawal. 

The Office, co-located with the Welsh Local Government Association and 

Wales Higher Education Brussels, represents the Welsh Government in 

Brussels. It develops and maintains relationships and facilitates ministerial 

and official level engagement with the EU Institutions, UK Government and 

Pack Page 8



3 
 

devolved administration representatives and other stakeholders such as 

regional governments, non-EU governments, NGOs, industry bodies and think 

tanks, including participation in relevant networks.  

 

8. The European Transition Team also works closely with other Welsh 

Government departments, who have prioritised their existing resources for 

dealing with specific Brexit issues following the referendum result.  

 

9. Within Environment and Rural Affairs (ERA) for example, a small, Brexit team 

was created from ERA’s existing resources to establish and coordinate a 

number of key programmes and work streams. This element of ERA’s EU Exit 

& Strategy Unit comprises of approximately 19 individuals, lead by a Deputy 

Director. This team coordinates the work across ERA, but given the scale and 

implications of Brexit to ERA responsibilities, the work is being delivered by 

officials across the department as part of their substantive roles. 

 

10. Having scoped priority work arising as a result of EU withdrawal, which 

indicates the need for approximately a further 50 Brexit-dedicated staff across 

the ERA divisions, the Cabinet Secretary for Energy, Planning and Rural 

Affairs has agreed to scale up ERA’s dedicated Brexit operations. Given the 

pressures on permanent headcount remain, options to fill a number of these 

posts through secondments, loans and time-limited, internally recruited posts 

are being pursued. 

 

11. Trade will remain an area of EU exclusive competence until we leave the EU, 

but future decisions on new trading relationships with the EU and third 

countries will directly impact on a wide range of devolved policy areas – for 

example, environmental standards, economic development, agriculture, skills 

and qualifications. A Trade Policy Team to support all departments and 

Ministers across Welsh Government has therefore been established to work 

alongside the existing Trade and Investment team. The Trade Policy team 

consists of three permanent staff and one temporary appointment from the 

civil service fast-stream staff, and is lead by a Deputy Director who also has 

responsibility of Natural Resources Wales sponsorship. 

 

12. Work on European transition within the Economy and Infrastructure portfolio is 

being led by senior officials across the department, and teams whose policy 

areas are affected by Brexit are also considering the implications of European 

transition as part of their day to day work. The focus has largely been on 

working with businesses to discuss the implications of Brexit for them, and to 

identify how and where support can best be offered. In addition, officials have 

been engaging with UK Government on matters that are principally its 

responsibility, but which have significant implications for Welsh Government 

Pack Page 9



4 
 

responsibilities, e.g. detailed work on the implications for Welsh ports and 

other infrastructure of potential new customs arrangements.   

 

13. A change to the structure of the Legal Services Department was made in the 

latter part of 2016. This involved the creation of a Europe Team in order to 

provide support to the European Transition Team and the emerging legal 

workloads arising from EU Exit. The team comprises a Team Leader together 

with four lawyers, which will shortly increase to five lawyers. The team is 

overseen by a Deputy Director and forms part of a wider Division comprising 

the Constitution Team and the Health and Food Safety Team. A number of 

other teams within the Legal Services Department undertake legal workloads 

arising from Brexit, notably the Rural Affairs Team, Environment Team and 

Health & Food Safety Team.   

 

14. In addition, there are of course large numbers of staff, particularly in both the 

Welsh European Funding Office (WEFO) and the Environment and Rural 

Affairs department, working on the ongoing delivery of European 

programmes, who are also engaged with thinking about the operational 

aspects of European transition.  

 

15. For Higher Education, a dedicated Deputy Director was appointed in 

November 2016 to lead and co-ordinate work in relation to Brexit and Higher 

Education.  

 

16. The implications for Health and other public services are being addressed by 

senior officials across the organisation and co-ordinated through the Cabinet 

Sub-Committee and the European Transition Officials Group. The policy 

document on Migration, “Brexit and the Fair Movement of People”, is an 

example of how the issues affecting public services have been considered 

and contributed to the development of Welsh Government policy.  

 

17. As is suggested above, while around 50 staff are working more or less 

exclusively on work directly related to Brexit, a significant number of other 

staff across Welsh Government departments are working on issues related to 

European transition alongside delivery of the overall Programme for 

Government and specific commitments within it, as set out in Taking Wales 

Forward and Prosperity for All. It is not possible, therefore, to provide a 

meaningful single total headcount of, or financial cost for, all staff working on 

European transition issues. 

 

18. The Welsh Government will keep staffing and resourcing issues related to 

European transition under review.  

 

Pack Page 10



5 
 

Financial response 

19. The Welsh Government welcomed the guarantee from the UK Government in 

October 2016 in respect of the current round of EU programmes. It is now 

critical to have certainty that the Welsh Government will continue to have at 

least the same level of funding as currently and that this funding is not subject 

to any new UK Government constraints or top-slicing. 

 

20. The Welsh Government is also ensuring we receive the relevant and fair 

consequential funding being allocated to UK departments to prepare for the 

UK’s exit from the EU. This includes consequential funding as a result of the 

£250m being allocated from reserves in 2017-18 as set out in the Written 

Statement from the Chief Secretary to the Treasury on 12 October 2017.    

 

21. Brexit-related uncertainty comes alongside a long period of sustained 

austerity, and we are facing the continuing challenge of delivering our 

priorities within the context of growing pressures and an ever-decreasing 

budget.  

 

22. As a first step to easing the uncertainty we face in future years, we have 

continually urged the UK Government to reconsider its plans to make an 

additional £3.5bn of departmental reductions in 2019-20. 

 

23. Ahead of the UK Government’s Budget, I have written to the Chief Secretary 

to the Treasury urging the UK Government to end austerity and commit to key 

infrastructure projects in Wales and provide much-needed clarity about future 

investments. It is time for the UK Government to listen to the expert views of 

the OECD and the IMF to take advantage of low interest rates in order to fund 

increased investment in infrastructure. 

 

24. Our recently published draft Budget 2018-19 was set, for the first time, under 

our new fiscal framework. This framework provides for a number of additional 

flexibilities to manage the Welsh Government’s resources, such as a new 

Welsh reserve and increased borrowing powers. While we will not know the 

outcome of the UK Government’s “efficiency review” until the UK Budget on 

22 November, the expected impact of this reduction in Wales has been taken 

into account in the draft Budget.  

 

25. The new Welsh reserve, which will be introduced from April 2018, offers 

considerable additional flexibility compared to the previous budget exchange 

process, holding up to £350m. We have taken a prudent approach to reserves 

during this Assembly term to ensure we maximise the flexibility afforded 

through the new Welsh reserve.  Given the uncertainty we face and the 

pending efficiency cuts by the UK Government, the Welsh reserve will provide 

Pack Page 11



6 
 

us with the capacity to protect public services from the worst of the cuts in 

future years and deploy resources strategically to meet future challenges. In 

setting this draft Budget we have planned to draw down £75m in 2019-20 

from the Welsh reserve.  

Engagement with UK Government  

26. We have actively sought opportunities to engage with the UK Government to 

ensure we maximise our influence on the UK’s negotiating position, and we 

genuinely feel that our evidenced-based arguments, along with those of other 

key stakeholders, have had an impact on their approach, notably in 

recognising the vital importance of transitional arrangements, which we clearly 

emphasised in our White Paper published back in January. We have also 

made it clear in our White Paper the importance of “full and unfettered 

access” to the Single Market, with the UK Government subsequently calling 

for “freest and most frictionless trade possible” with the EU.  

 

27. We have clearly made the case of the importance of robust intergovernmental 

machinery and engagement in order to ensure that the interests of Wales are 

protected and we now welcome the fact that the UK Government has re-

launched the Joint Ministerial Committee (EU Negotiations), and has given a 

renewed commitment to have more regular and purposeful meetings. We are 

committed to using this forum as the basis for substantive joint working, 

supplemented by the cross-portfolio Ministerial level ongoing bilateral 

engagement with UK Government counterparts.    

 

28. This has been supported by a large amount of regular, ongoing discussion at 

senior official levels across a range of Welsh Government departments in 

order to seek to protect the interests and promote the priorities of Wales in 

development of the UK Government policy thinking. For example, the 

Permanent Secretary attends a meeting of all Permanent Secretaries across 

Whitehall and Devolved Administrations each week, and also has regular 

meetings with the Permanent Secretary for the Department for Exiting the 

European Union. Our Brussels office staff also work closely with UK 

Government colleagues in the UK Permanent Representation to the EU, 

forming part of the wider UK team there.  

 

29. We continue to emphasise the need for the UK Government to engage us 

much more fully in the development of their policy thinking and negotiating 

positions. This is particularly the case on aspects of Brexit which impact on 

devolved competences, so that they can put forward a UK-wide position in the 

negotiations with the EU-27 in a way which reflects established practice in 

regard to ongoing EU business. It is also imperative that the UK Government, 

with its much greater resources, shares its analysis and research with us in a 

Pack Page 12



7 
 

way that they have not done to date (as demonstrated by the UK 

Government’s reluctance to share detailed economic impact assessments), 

and opens up greater engagement on operational readiness issues. There is 

a limit to what the Welsh Government can do to prepare for different 

outcomes if the UK Government do not work with us in this way.   

 

How the Welsh Government is supporting public services, higher education, 

third sector and economic sectors to prepare for exiting the European Union. 

30. Close working and intensive engagement with all parts of Welsh society is 

vital in responding to EU withdrawal. As previously referred to, the European 

Advisory Group has been established to advise the Welsh Government on 

challenges and potential opportunities arising from the UK’s withdrawal from 

the European Union. It brings together individuals with experience and 

expertise of European issues from across civil society and political sectors in 

Wales. Members have generally been invited on an individual basis rather 

than as formal representatives of specific organisations. 

 

31. We are engaging extensively with businesses, farmers, trade unions, 

educational institutions, public services, the third sector, communities and the 

public. Examples of Welsh Government working groups which are considering 

and discussing Brexit issues are the Workforce Partnership Council, Faith 

Forum and Third Sector Partnership Council. The Programme Monitoring 

Committee for the European Structural and Investment funds also support us 

to capture views of key partners in thinking about current and future regional 

policy.  

 

32. In terms of engagement with Higher Education institutions, the Higher 

Education Working Group was established in September 2016 comprising 

representatives of the Higher Education sector, including Universities Wales, 

Welsh Higher Education Brussels, National Union of Students and Higher 

Education Funding Council for Wales.   

 

33. Health officials are also regularly engaging with relevant stakeholders, for 

example Brexit has been a standing agenda item at the Wales NHS 

Partnership Forum, chaired by Welsh Government, since the result of the 

referendum, and Brexit related issues are discussed in individual organisation 

meetings for example joint oversight meetings with the British Medical 

Association, meetings with the Royal College of Nursing and Foods 

Standards Agency.  

 

34. Since the referendum we have been engaging widely with businesses of all 

sizes right across Wales to understand the risks and opportunities of Brexit. 

We are committed to developing policies based on robust evidence and have 

Pack Page 13



8 
 

commissioned various research to support this, for example the research 

prepared by the Public Policy Institute for Wales included in our “Brexit and 

Fair Movement of People” policy document. Research which we have 

undertaken to understand the way in which larger companies are preparing 

for Brexit will also be published in the near future.  

 

35. One of our biggest efforts to address the potential negative impact of Brexit is 

supporting businesses, and we are increasing our efforts to grow the number 

and scale of Welsh based businesses that are exporting through bringing 

forward a pro-active plan for export support. As part of the Budget Agreement 

between the Welsh Government and Plaid Cymru, additional funding was also 

included in the draft budget for 2018-19 to support businesses with the impact 

of Brexit.       

 

36. We have been talking to businesses and business representatives across 

Wales (for example, through the Council for Economic Development and its 

Brexit working group) in order to understand their concerns and needs and 

ensure their views are fed into Welsh Government policy positions and our 

representations to influence the UK Government.  

 

37. Work on Brexit scenario planning is also being initiated through our priority 

sector teams. The establishment of the working group with representatives 

from the Council for Economic Development, business community, Wales 

TUC and the Wales Cooperative will develop increased understanding of the 

challenges and opportunities of the exit from the EU.  

 

38. The proposed UK Government legislation in relation to Customs and Trade is 

likely to have an economic impact, and will particularly impact on the ports 

and harbours of Wales. We are working with counterparts in the UK 

Government to understand what is proposed in this legislation, in order that 

we can mitigate the risks for Wales and maximise the benefits.   

 

39. Given the relevance of European driven legislation on the ERA portfolio, 

almost immediately after the Brexit referendum result, the then titled, Cabinet 

Secretary for Environment and Rural Affairs formed a Brexit Roundtable 

Group of key stakeholders from across her portfolio. Meeting every six weeks 

or so, this group has been working to identify the likely impacts and 

opportunities arising from exiting the EU. In order to consider certain areas in 

more detail, the main group has created a series of sub-groups. These sub- 

groups, chaired by senior officials from within ERA, are: Air & Climate, 

Evidence & Scenarios, Land Management, Rivers & Seas, People & 

Communities, Regulation & Legislation, and Trade & Supply Chains.  

 

Pack Page 14



9 
 

40. Their work is being used to inform ERA’s policy development, our discussions 

and negotiations with Defra and the wider UK Government, and has already 

contributed to a number of Welsh Government’s published documents. They 

are now progressing to readiness considerations (i.e. what they will need to 

do to manage these issues and what support they will need from Welsh 

Government as part of this). 

Conclusion  

41. I hope the Committee finds this written evidence paper useful in outlining how 

the Welsh Government has built its capability in response to the outcome of 

the EU referendum. Members will appreciate that arrangements will continue 

to evolve quickly as we move closer towards EU withdrawal, and I will be 

happy to update the committee further in future.   

 

Mark Drakeford AM 

Cabinet Secretary for Finance  

 

Pack Page 15



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 16

By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 35

Agenda Item 7By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 36

Agenda Item 8 By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 45

By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42


	Agenda
	2.1 Paper to Note 1 - Letter from Llywydd to David Davis MP regarding the EU (Withdrawal) Bill
	2.2 Paper to Note 2 - Letter from UK JCW to David Davies MP regarding the EU (Withdrawal) Bill
	3 Resilience and preparedness: the Welsh Government’s administrative and financial response to Brexit - evidence session
	Research Briefing - Welsh Government Performance and Preparedness

	7 Motion to agree changes to sub-committee membership under Standing Order 17.17
	8 Monitoring the EU Negotiations
	Brexit Monitoring Report


